

SWANSCOMBE AND GREENHITHE TOWN COUNCIL.

Planning, Major Developments, Transportation & the Environment Committee.

Councillor B R Parry (Chairman) Councillor B E Read (Vice-Chairman) Councillor K G Basson Councillor Dr J M Harman Councillor P C Harris Councillor J A Hayes Councillor Ms L C Howes Councillor Ms L C Howes Councillor K M Kelly Councillor Mrs L Manchester Councillor D J Mote Councillor A S Reach Councillor S J Ryan

To all other Councillors: For information only.

A Meeting of the above Committee will be held on

Wednesday 5 September 2018 at 7.00pm

at: The Council Offices, The Grove, Swanscombe, Kent, DA10 0GA.

Grahan Blew

Graham Blew Town Clerk

Dated: 29 August 2018

Should any member have any questions regarding the content of the agenda or attached papers, please put them to the clerk's office 24 hours in advance of the meeting.



The Council Offices, The Grove, Swanscombe, Kent, DA10 0GA. Tel: (01322) 385513 Fax: (01322) 385849

AGENDA

- 1. To receive Apologies for Absence.
- 2. Substitutes.
- 3. To Declare Interests in Items on the Agenda.

At the Chairman's discretion the meeting will be adjourned at this point to accept questions from the public.

- 4. Items as Deemed Urgent by the Chairman / matters arising from previous minutes and their position on the Agenda (*for discussion/information only, not for decision*).
- 5. To confirm and sign the Minutes of the Meeting held on 4 July 2018 (p).

6. DARTFORD STRATEGIC ISSUES (NEW LOCAL PLAN) CONSULTATION – DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL (DBC)) (p).

Further to minute 93/18-19 a meeting was arranged with members and the Planning Policy Manager (DBC) on 18 July 2018, from this the attached response was collated and submitted.

Recommended: To note and endorse the response submitted.

7. <u>TOWN PLANNING</u>.

7.1 Please find attached the planning applications received and responded to by the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chairman, during the recess period (as per minute 97/18-19).

DA/18/00246/FUL	Demolition of existing garage and erection of a
	detached 4 bed dwelling house
	Land adjacent 115 Milton Road, Swanscombe.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations, please ensure all neighbouring properties are consulted prior to approval.
DA/18/00796/FUL	Erection of single storey extensions and alterations for conversion of former cottage to 2 bedroom dwelling with associated parking, amenity space and refuse store and alterations to car/bicycle parking and refuse storage approved under application refs: DA/06/01386/FUL and DA/09/00586/FUL in connection with conversion of Mounts Court to flats Mounts Cottage Mounts Court Mounts Road Greenhithe.
OBSERVATIONS:	Confirmation is requested from the Planning Authority that the development meets the requirements of the Dartford Borough Council Parking Standards. Please ensure all neighbours are consulted prior to approval.
DA/18/00799/FUL	Conversion of rear part of garage to storage room (retrospective application)
	10 Bere Close, Greenhithe.
OBSERVATIONS:	The Town Council objects to this application due to inadequate parking arrangements. Loss of parking space within garage, the remaining space does nott meet current parking standards. Dartford Borough Council Parking Standards, requires a space to be 5.0m X 2.5m, the application shows remaining space to be 4.7m X 2.7m
DA/18/00843/FUL	Demolition of existing rear conservatory and erection of a single storey rear extension. 11 Riverview Road, Greenhithe.

OBSERVATIONS:	No observations, please ensure all neighbouring properties are consulted prior to approval.
DA/18/00847/LDC	 Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for proposed dormer window and roof light in rear elevation and roof lights in front elevation in connection with providing additional rooms in the roof space. 29 Robinson Way, Northfleet.
OBSERVATIONS:	Clarification is sought that the Development meets Dartford Borough Council Parking Standards. The development creates a four bedroom house and a study (which is of suitable size to be a bedroom) but appears to have only one parking space.
DA/18/00868/FUL	Erection of a first floor side extension, single story rear extension and alterations to existing rear conservatory to provide single story rear extension (revisions to previously approved planning permission DA/17/02087/FUL in respect of bringing forward the front of the first floor side extension level with ground floor) 97 Caspian Way, Swanscombe.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations, please ensure all neighbouring properties are consulted prior to approval.
DA/18/00857/FUL	Erection of a two storey annex in rear garden. 6 Cobham Close, Greenhithe.
OBSERVATIONS:	To ensure that the annexe never becomes a separate dwelling, the Town Council request a condition be included in any approval, that the building shall be used solely as accommodation ancillary to the main dwelling. Confirmation is requested from the Planning Authority that the development meets the requirements of the Dartford Borough Council Parking Standards. Please ensure all neighbours are consulted prior to approval.
DA/18//00873/FUL	Erection of a single storey side extension.
	6 Western Cross Close, Greenhithe.
OBSERVATIONS:	Confirmation is requested from the Planning Authority that the development meets the

	requirements of the Dartford Borough Council Parking Standards. Please ensure all neighbours are consulted prior to approval.
DA/18/00883/FUL	Demolition of existing rear conservatory and erection of a single storey rear extension.
	14 Lightermans Way, Greenhithe.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations, please ensure all neighbouring properties are consulted prior to approval.
DA/18/00929/FUL	Change of front window at first floor.
	18B Milton Road, Swanscombe.
OBSERVATIONS:	The Town Council are concerned that the alterations to the windows seem to be out of character to other properties in the area, although it is also noted that neighbouring properties have already made similarly out of character alterations.
DA/18/00958/REM	Reserved matters relating to appearance and landscaping pursuant to condition 1 of planning permission DA/17/01201/VCON for Section 73 application for Variation of Condition 4 (approved drawings) of planning permission DA/13/01522/OUT (granted on appeal for demolition of existing dwellings and erection of 66 flats with provision of 110 parking spaces and an additional 6 for residents of Flint Cottage). Variation of drawings in respect of relocation and alteration of access road arrangements, relocation of bike and refuse stores and reduction in number of units to 64 by removal of 2 end units adjacent to the access road. 1a, 1b, 1c Knockhall Road, Greenhithe.
OBSERVATIONS :	No observations.
DA/18/01002/OUT	Outline application (consideration of access and scale only) for erection of block of 13 No. micro-flats with communal facilities and bins and bike store. The Alma, 26 High Street, Swanscombe.
OBSERVATIONS:	 Access The Dartford Borough Council Parking Standards indicate that this development will generate a demand for 16 spaces for residents and additionally

	6 spaces for visitors and 2 spaces for vans. Whilst
	the Town Council accepts the principle that some residents will only use public transport, cycle or walk, we believe that that development will still generate a demand for parking from its residents and visitors. The lack of any parking provision will force any vehicles onto local roads, most of which nearest to the site are covered by parking restrictions such as single or double yellow lines. The car park in The Grove is primarily for the use of shoppers and to prevent dangerous parking on the High Street and is not to facilitate other developments. Dartford Borough Council Parking Standards indicates the requirement for parking of 13 cycles, one for each flat. The space shown on the drawing for cycle and refuse storage appears too small to accommodate all the cycles and bins and the access to the store appears inadequate.
	• Scale It appears that the proposed building fills the entire site and the massing is greater than the existing building. Unfortunately due to the lack of provision of existing elevations of the building in the application it is impossible to accurately judge the increase in massed form. Without further information it is impossible to come to any conclusion other than it is over development of a small site and out of character for the area.
EDC/17/0107 RE-CONSULTATION	Reserved Matters application for the construction of 332 dwellings and parking along with associated landscaping, infrastructure and earthworks.
	Eastern Quarry, Watling Street, Swanscombe.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
EDC/17/0108 RE-CONSULTATION	Reserved Matters application for the construction of 163 dwellings and parking along with associated landscaping, infrastructure and earthworks.
	Eastern Quarry, Watling Street, Swanscombe.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
EDC/17/0154 DA/18/00979/EDCCON	Part Retrospective application for Reserved Matters for Phase 2 Infrastructure works pursuant to Conditions 2 and 19 of outline planning permission

	EDC/16/0045 for the Spine Road, site levels, site wide cut and Village Green.
	Former Northfleet West Sub Station, Southfleet Road, Swanscombe.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
EDC/17/0160	Application for approval of condition 8 attached to reserved matters planning permission reference no. EDC/17/0049 relating to external lighting.
	Land west Of Springhead Road - Phase 2B Springhead Road Northfleet Gravesend
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
EDC/18/0026	Erection of a single storey extension to rear.
	37 Cherry Orchard, Castle Hill, Ebbsfleet Valley.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations. Please ensure all neighbouring properties are consulted prior to approval.
EDC/18/0048 DA/18/00997/EDCCON	Application for approval of condition 37 attached to planning permission reference no. EDC/17/0048 relating to details of The Scheme of Working and Code of Conduct associated with landforming within the Central and Western Villages (excluding Alkerden Farm).
	Eastern Quarry, Watling Street, Swanscombe.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
EDC/18/0067	Application for approval of conditions 7 attached to planning permission reference no. EDC/17/0020 relating to details of external lighting.
	Land at Eastern Quarry, Watling Street, Swanscombe.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
EDC/18/0078	Application for approval of condition 3 attached to planning permission reference no. EDC/18/0009 relating to an updated Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) to cover the earthworks phase of development.

	Land West Of Springhead Road (Springhead Park), Springhead Road, Northfleet.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
EDC/18/0081	Application for approval of condition 15 (part) pursuant to outline planning permission reference no. EDC/17/0123 relating to details of external facing materials. Northfleet Embankment East, Crete Hall Road, Northfleet.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
EDC/18/0082	Application for approval of condition 16 (part) pursuant to outline planning permission reference no. EDC/17/0123 relating to details of hard landscaping.
	Northfleet Embankment East, Crete Hall Road, Northfleet.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
EDC/18/0083 DA/18/00994/EDCCON	Application for the variation of Condition 2 attached to Reserved Matters planning permission reference no. EDC/17/0118 in relation to a change in house types and materials and to discharge conditions 4 and 5 of that same permission relating to materials. Former Northfleet West Sub Station, Southfleet Road, Swanscombe.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
EDC/18/0085 DA/18/01059/EDCCON	Formation of development platform and installation of rockfall meshing system. Land at London Road and west of Craylands Lane Swanscombe.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
EDC/18/0086 DA/18/01061/EDCCON	Reserved Matters Application pursuant to Conditions 2 and 18 of planning permission reference no. EDC/17/0048 relating to advanced infrastructure works in the form of land forming and earthworks within the Central and Western villages (excluding Alkerden Farm).

	Land at Eastern Quarry Watling Street Swanscombe.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
EDC/18/0088	Application for variation of condition 1 attached to planning permission reference no. EDC/16/0005 (for erection of a temporary single storey marketing suite building) to extend the time period of its retention to 30 September 2022, or within 6 months of the final residential completion on Phase 3 of the development, whichever is sooner. Land west of Springhead Road (Springhead Park) Springhead Road Northfleet.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.
KCC/DA/0412/2018	The construction of acoustic noise fencing within the Highway verge, as part of the A206 St Clements Way Highway Improvements scheme St Clements Way, Greenhithe.
OBSERVATIONS:	No observations.

Recommended:

To note and endorse the responses submitted during the summer 2018 recess.

7.2 The following planning applications have been received from Dartford Borough Council / Ebbsfleet Development Corporation for Members observations (full details of these applications can be viewed via the Town Council, DBC and the EDC websites).

DA/18/01052/PDE	 Determination pursuant to Schedule 2, Part 1 (Class A.1 (g) of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as to whether prior approval is required for the erection of a single storey rear extension. 16 Taunton Road, Northfleet.
EDC/18/0084	Outline application for redevelopment to provide industrial units (Class B1c and/or B2 with ancillary Class B1a) together with associated parking and access road, including details relating to access, layout and scale. Rod End Estate, Northfleet Industrial Estate, Lower Road Northfleet.
EDC/18/0091	 Application for approval of part condition 14 (a) pursuant to outline planning permission reference no. EDC/17/0048 relating to an archaeological field evaluation report and written timetable. Central And Western Village, Eastern Quarry, Watling Street, Swanscombe.

7.3 The following Granted Decision Notices have been submitted by Dartford Borough Council / Ebbsfleet Development Corporation for Members information.

DA/16/01819/CDNA	Submission of details (phase 1 only) relating to surface and foul water drainage pursuant to condition 9 of outline planning permission DA/12/01325/OUT (granted on appeal) for redevelopment of the site to comprise up to 40 residential dwellings, provision of public open space, parking, access and landscaping. retention of the bowling green and relocation and enhancement of bowling club facilities and car parking. Empire Paper Mills Sports Ground Rear Of 25 Knockhall Road, Greenhithe.
DA/17/01350/CDNA	Submission of details relating to surface water and foul water drainage (phase 2 only) pursuant to condition 9 of outline planning permission DA/12/01325/OUT (Granted on appeal)for redevelopment of the site to comprise up to 40 residential dwellings, provision of public open space, parking, access and landscaping. Retention of the bowling green and relocation and enhancement of bowling club facilities and car parking.
	Phase 2 Former Empire Sports Ground, South Of Knockhall Road, Greenhithe.
DA/18/00247/CDNA	Submission of details relating to proposed ground levels and finished heights (condition 5), boundary fence and treatment (condition 6), surface water and foul drainage (condition 7), window detail (condition 8), external materials (condition 9) and landscaping scheme (condition 10) pursuant to planning permission DA/17/00507/FUL for erection of 1 No. detached two storey house, including alterations to external curtilage, and associated parking (revisions to previously approved planning permission DA/16/01545/FUL in respect of relocation house further back and further away from side boundary with No. 34 Valley View). Adjacent to 34 Valley View, Greenhithe.
DA/18/00500/FUL	Provision of a hand car wash with cabin and canopy, and composite fencing.
	Asda Superstores, Crossways Boulevard, Greenhithe.
DA/18/00501/ADV	Display of 4 No. non-illuminated fascia signs and 3 No. non-illuminated information signs (Opening hours, Price List and Health and Safety posters) to be displayed on

	perimeter fence and 1 No. hoarding sign and 2 No. information sign (all non-illuminated)
	Asda Superstores, Crossways Boulevard, Greenhithe.
DA/18/00540/CDNA	Submission of details relating to refuse storage (condition 5), management plan for open public space (condition 7) and external lighting (condition 8) pursuant to planning permission DA/15/01497/REM (as amended by 16/01799/NONMAT) for reserved matters relating to appearance, layout, scale and landscaping pursuant to outline application DA/12/01325/OUT (granted on appeal) for the erection of 40 residential dwellings (comprising 16 x 3 bed, 13 x 4 bed, 7 x 5 bed houses and 4 x 1 bed maisonettes) and provision of public open space.
	Former Empire Sports Ground, South Of Knockhall Road, Greenhithe.
DA/18/00548/CDNA	Submission of details for phases 1 and 2 relating to boundary enclosures (condition 20) and external lighting (condition 24) pursuant to outline planning permission DA/12/01325/OUT (Granted on appeal) and as amended by DA/16/01800/NONMAT for redevelopment of the site to comprise up to 40 residential dwellings, provision of public open space, parking, access and landscaping. Retention of the bowling green and relocation and enhancement of bowling club facilities and car parking. Former Empire Sports Ground, South Of Knockhall Road, Greenhithe.
DA/18/00595/FUL	Provision of a vehicle crossover onto Craylands Lane.
	2 Pentstemon Drive, Swanscombe.
DA/18/00655/FUL	Erection of a single storey side/rear extension. 6 London Road, Greenhithe.
DA/18/00688/FUL	Erection of a single storey rear extension incorporating demolition of existing conservatory. 37 Eglinton Road, Swanscombe.
DA/18/00750/COU	Continued use of rear conservatory for dog grooming unit. 36 Gunn Road, Swanscombe.

DA/18/00768/FUL	Erection of first floor side extension and single storey side/rear extension. 4 Pacific Close, Swanscombe.
DA/18/00785/FUL	Erection of a single storey rear extension. 3 St. Clements Road, Greenhithe.
DA/18/00790/FUL	Erection of a part two/part single storey rear extension. 33 Knockhall Chase, Greenhithe.
DA/18/00843/FUL	Demolition of existing rear conservatory and erection of single storey rear extension. 11 Riverview Road, Greenhithe.
DA/18/00868/FUL	Erection of a first floor side extension, single story rear extension and alterations to existing rear conservatory to provide single story rear extension (revisions to previously approved planning permission DA/17/02087/FUL in respect of bringing forward the front of the first floor side extension level with ground floor) 97 Caspian Way, Swanscombe.

7.4 The following Refused Decision Notices have been submitted by Dartford Borough Council / Ebbsfleet Development Corporation for Members information.

DA/18/00103/FUL	Erection of a two storey side extension and single storey rear extension incorporating demolition of existing detached garage.15 Pentstemon Drive, Swanscombe.
DA/18/00847/LDC	Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for proposed dormer window and roof light in rear elevation and roof lights in front elevation in connection with providing additional rooms in the roof space. 29 Robinson Way, Northfleet.



You can follow us on Social Media and via our website.

Swanscombe and Greenhithe Town Council Website: http://www.swanscombeandgreenhithetowncouncil.gov.uk

